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It is our mission to enhance life
automation through the implementation
of Smartcard and RFID technologies.
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Characteristics of GEM

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of
profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore,
there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies
listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the
companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited fo professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk
that securities tfraded on GEM may be more susceptible fo high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities fraded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication
on the internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed
companies are not generally required fo issue paid announcements in
gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note
that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-
to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.
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Corporate Structure
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1997

- Establishment of the Group

- REEMRIT

1998

Development of technologies and applications
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1999

Launched hardware products for smartcard system under
the trademark of "HOMAC”

Awarded with important smartcard and RFID projects in
Hong Kong
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2000

- Winning of 2000 Hong Kong Awards For Industry
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Listing on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Establishment of wholly owned PRC subsidiary: ITE (China)
Limited in Shanghai

Winning of 2001 HK Awards For Industry

Acquisition of leading IT System Integrator, Quesco Holdings
Limited and Quesco Systems Limited on 7th December
2001
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2002

Accreditation of ISO 9001:2000 Quality Assurance System HVS1SO 9001:200052 EEE I8 A58

Launched new I1SO15693 product series and solutions HEH—RPIISO15693 EE MR B ARR T5 52

Patent filing of ISO15693 based Smart Key Management - PASO15693 R E MBI seiB L E IR AR EBEFBE
System (SKMS) accepted by the State Intellectual Property EPBRBIRAEAERSEAN D2IE
Office of the People’s Republic of China

Awarded with the first ISO15693 Smartlabel project in - REBEAEEIBISO15693 LRSI A TIE
Hong Kong




Strategic Business Agreement signed with Shanghai Public
Traffic Card Company Limited (SPTCC) for the provision of
value-added solutions and services to its user community

Entered into distributor agreement with Texas Instruments
for marketing, sales and support of its product ranges

Became the sub-issuer of MULTOS

Receiving of Caring Company Award
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Start geographical expansion into Macau

Appointed as an international channel partner of

Transcore, LP

Patent filing of Automated Passenger Management
System (APMS) accepted by the State Intellectual
Property Office of the People's Republic of China

Accredited as one of the fastest growing technology
companies by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in the “2003 Asia
Pacific Technology Fast 500"
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2004

- EFIEEIAPS - Receiving of Caring Company Award

- Successfully completed the continual accreditation of

- J¥&ETranscore, LPE{ER BRI
I1SO9001:2000 Quality Assurance System

- BEAMERAMEN BB EPRRXIBE-EDS

BB - EEMERE (SREE) R
ke

- BINFEANISO9001: 20008V FF &S B S B 1B A iRets

ol

- R BEMRSSEENT ([BE)) BERE B
[EAMESRESMERS0052 ] EXEBHTHER




Financial Summary

Group Results RKEEXEB
T T
| |
2004 2003
Year Ended 31 March BE=B=+—BLFE | —mampys D me
: — s : — S =
| HK$000 | HK$000
: F87T : F&7T
Turnover =ES | 61,843 | 77,302
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation RRAIBEEEBEE : (12,038) : (21,381)
Taxation w18 ' - 167
| |
Loss attributable to shareholders REEBGEE | (12,038) (21,214)
Dividend B : - -
l l
Loss Per Share BREBR
T T
' 2004 ' 2003
Year Ended 31 March BE=A=1T—BLFE : — == : e
| — TP T | — ™ —
| |
: cents : cents
| B | B
| |
| |
Basic E=VN ! (1.33) 1 (2.34)
Diluted it L ONATEA (2.28)
| |
Loss Per Share SREBE
Basic loss per share BREANEIE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss BREAEBE DZREESEE12,038,430087T (8
attributable to shareholders of HK$12,038,430 (2003: HK$21,213,761) B=1F : 21,213,76187T) * LRFANDEITRID 2 N0E
and the weighted average of 907,536,000 ordinary shares (2003: SEIY R #0907,536,0008 (—SE=1F : 907,759,06842)
907,759,068 shares) in issue during the year. SERSE -
Diluted loss per share SREEEE
No diluted loss per share is presented for the year as there were no BRENTEBTIESZEBE SR FRATES
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the year. VI ERESEE -
The calculation of diluted loss per share of last year is based on the EECEBRESEEDIZRRESEE?21,213,7618
loss attributable to shareholders of HK$21,213,761 and the weighted T T E BT ESERTE R EEHARE
average of 930,321,740 ordinary shares after adjusting for the effects %2 NRESZ 15 A2 81930,321, 740 R S BISSHE

of all potential dilutive ordinary shares.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”), |
hereby present the annual results for ITE (Holdings) Limited (“ITE” or
the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2004.
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Mission

The mission of the Group is to become the leading smartcard and
radio frequency identification (“RFID”) solution provider and system
integrator in the Asia Pacific region. ITE has been pioneering
smartcard system solutions and integration and has been performing
outstandingly in Hong Kong. With profound expertise, strong research
and development (‘R&D”) capability, proven track record and excellent
reputation in the industry, the Group has established a leading profile
in the smartcard industry in Hong Kong and has taken a proactive
approach to infroduce innovative and customised smartcard and RFID
applications to its clients. Leveraging on its extensive industry
experience, ITE is developing smartcard and RFID solutions for clients
from many industries and expanding its business activities to the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and other countries in the Asia
Pacific region.

Overview

In December 2003, ITE was accredited as one of the fastest growing
technology companies by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in the “2003
Asia Pacific Technology Fast 500”. The program is a ranking of the
leading technology companies across the Asia Pacific region based
on percentage revenue growth over a period of 3 years. The winning
companies came from new and established businesses and from
across Asia Pacific and industry sectors. ITE is glad to receive the
Award which reflects that besides being customer-focused, the Group
has the ability to adapt to changes and new technologies.
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Chairman’s Statement

On 8 January 2004, the Company’s subsidiaries, ITE Smartcard
Solutions Limited (“ITES”) and ITE Engineering Limited (“ITEE"),
successfully completed and passed the 1SO9001:2000 Quality
Assurance System audit carried out by BSI Management Systems
Limited. Both companies received the continual accreditation of
ISO9001:2000 Certificates and demonstrated again the
uncompromising commitment of ITE towards professional
management and quality assurance.

Another wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Quesco Information
Services Limited (“QISL") has rescheduled the implementation of
Capability Management Module ("CMM”) set of practices to the fiscal
year of 2005. We believe that the CMM will serve to compliment the
existing information technology (“IT”) quality standards and enhance
the overall quality of service provided to our clients. Besides the
CMM'’s Certification, the Group will continue to maintain and improve
higher standard of management and quality control.

During the year, the Group has continued to participate in serving
the community with our staff actively involved in social services. During
the outbreak of SARS, ITE has participated in supporting the fund-
raising event of the “United in Spirit & Action” to say thank you to all
those dedicated SARS fighters. Caring ambassador of ITE has joined
the seminar on Promoting a Family Friendly Workplace and the
community visit for deprived groups and poor families held by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS). We have also provided
for the fourth consequent year workplace attachment training
organised by the Labour Department under the Youth Pre-employment
Training Programme.

On 3 February 2004, The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
presented ITE again with the Caring Company Award 2004 for its
good corporate citizenship which the Group will continue to practice
actively.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest thanks to
my directors, management and staff for their dedication and hard
work, and shareholders, financiers and business partners for their
continual support.

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 June, 2004
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERESYm R DI

Management of the Group has continued to utilise our professional
and committed workforce and financial resources to achieve
maximum return to our shareholders.

Business Review

Sales and Marketing Activities

Our PRC subsidiary, S8 IKE 2R HFEBER/A ST (ITE (China)
Limited, “ITEC") has completed and delivered a number of projects
deploying the platform of Shanghai Public Traffic Card (“SPTC"), several
new contracts have been awarded during the year. ITEC has
contfinued to develop the new generation of SPTC based parking
payment system on an exclusive basis with SPTC to target for the
Shanghai parking market, it is expected to launch in the 2nd quarter
of the fiscal year of 2005. ITEC has continued to market the 1SO
15693 smartlabel products and solutions to potential clients in China.

Within the campus and real estates market, ITES has been awarded
with new contracts from old and new clients in Hong Kong and
Macau. In December 2003, ITES exhibited our “All-in-one Campus
Smartcard” Solutions and latest RFID technology in the Conference
on Computers in Education (ICCE 2003). We presented and shared
our products and solution knowledge with a number of potential
clients and partners. It is expected the revenue from campus and
real estates market will continue to remain stable in the fiscal year of
2005.

By &
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERESYm R DI

ITES has actively promoted our solutions and services to the
government and public sectors. The Frequent Traveler Scheme of the
Hong Kong Airport Authority and the Macau Prison projects were
successfully completed. As very wide applications and business
potentials can be derived from smartcard and RFID applications,
extensive marketing efforts are being deployed to promote such.

The Group has paid significant effort in tendering for important and
sizeable projects and has approached potential IT, smartcard and
RFID based solution users. ITES has recently teamed with our partner
to pursue a few government smartcard and RFID projects including
the automated vehicle clearance system in Macau, the result of award
is expected to announce in the 3rd quarter of 2004.

During the year, QISL has been awarded contracts for the
development of a new Hall Facilities Booking System (HFBS) by the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the Elderly Home Management
System (EHMS) by the Sik Sik Yuen. The projects completion and
implementation are within the fiscal year of 2005. QISL is also
participating the re-tender of a sizeable government IT project which
QISL participated two years ago, the result of award is expected to
announce in the 2nd quarter of the fiscal year of 2005.

Our subsidiary, Quesco Systems Limited ("QSL"), has continued to excel
in the staffing and recruitment sectors in Hong Kong and provide an
exceptional personnel staffing resource for the current T20 contract
for the Provision of Information Technology Contract Staff Services
issued by the Hong Kong Government. The next contract for this
service which QSL is set to pursue is the T21 which will likely be
issued in late 2004.

Research and Development

With the very fast growing adoption of RFID technology in the
manufacturing and logistics industries and the new emerging
standard of Electronic Product Code ("EPC”), the Group has been
actively forming commercial and technology alliances with certain
overseas partners. Along with the ongoing R&D in 13.56Mhz product
line, the Group’s product arm, RF Tech Limited (“RFT”), has started the
development of new Ultra High Frequency (“UHF) RFID products and
application systems. It is expected that the EPC/UHF RFID technology
will become a new drive force of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERESYm R DI

During the year, a series of compact flash readers supporting 1SO
14443 and 1SO 15693 have been developed and launched in the
market. The Group is currently setting up new distribution channels
for the product line. Besides, a product line of automated passenger
management system has been developed with a patent filing to the
State Patent Office in Beijing on 6 June 2003 (Application No.
03129119.8).

Future Prospect

With the Group'’s restructuring exercises, cost reduction measures
and business focus swap come into effect, the loss for the year has
been reduced significantly compared with last year’s historic loss
result even though we have gone through the SARS attack. The
Directors believe that the Group has passed through the worst and
toughest period and managed to response to the changes in the
smartcard and information technology industries. With the successful
formation of new marketplaces, clients and product lines, we are
confident with the performance outlook and profitability in the fiscal
year of 2005.

Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 March 2004, the Group recorded total revenue
of approximately HK$62 million, representing a decrease of 20% over
the last year. Loss attributable to the shareholders for the year ended
31 March 2004 was approximately HK$12 million as compared to a
loss of approximately HK$21 million for the last year.

Turnover Breakdown by Main Business Segments

2%

FR - —FRHPLIS014443 K 1SO15693%: 1l & & 2 &Y
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4% 1% 2004
72% Consultancy fee
2% BEREEH
21% Smartcard systems, RFID and information technology services
ERERRIR « SRR RE AR IR
4% Provision of maintenance services
RIRBIRS
2% Sales of service related products
72% SHERFEEEIE D
1% Electrical and mechanical installation
WELETIE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERESYm R DI

2003
21%
60% Consultancy fee
BEEA
1% 15% Smartcard systems, RFID and information technology services
- BEERRR ~ FRBBI R E IR AR
3% Provision of maintenance services
o SRR
15% 1% Sales of service related products
THERRFAERIES
21% Electrical and mechanical installation

HEZE T

Segmental Information

During the year, the Group recorded a drop in turnover for about
20% when compared with last year. The reason for such decrease
was mainly due to the slow down business in the electrical and
mechanical engineering segment. The business nature of electrical
and mechanical engineering is considered to be lower gross profit
margin and longer credit period which means higher risk on
receivables. Therefore, the Group is very cautions in bidding new
contracts of this kind and resulting in significant drop in the turnover
of this segment.

On the other hand, the Group had concentrated its resources on its
core business development, i.e. to provide the smartcard and RFID
systems and information technology services. More effort had been
placed in sales and marketing activities and R&D investments.
Therefore, with such worse economic conditions during the year, the
turnover of this segment was increased for more than 10% and the
segment result was also improved.

For consultancy service segment, the revenue stream and margin
remained rather stable. The significant increase in the segment result
is due to well-define the respective costs on each segment during
the year. This would help on performance evaluation on each
segment.

EIRfE R R T
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally financed its operations with its internally
generated cash flows and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2004,
the Group had outstanding borrowings of HK$11,007,134, comprising
short-term loans of HK$7,129,159, bank overdraft of HK$1,794,665
and installment loan of HK$2,083,310. Out of the total indebtedness,
HK$416,630 is repayable after one year. At 31 March 2004, the current
ratio of the Group was 1.58 (2003: 2.15) while the liquidity ratio was
1.46 (2003: 1.97)

Taking into consideration the banking facilities granted and the
existing financial resources available to the Group, it is believed that
the Group should have adequate financial resources to meet its
operation, development requirements and investments in the future.

Capital Structure

The Group continues to adopt a conservative approach towards its
treasury policy. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of its
customers. Besides, the Group's liquidity and financing arrangements
are also reviewed regularly.

Significant Investments

The Group had no significant investments during the year under
review.

Material Acquisitions or Disposal of
Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

During the year under review, the Group had no material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

Employment Information

At 31 March 2004, the Group had 171 full-time employees (as at 31
March 2003: 200 full-time employees), of which 156 are based in
Hong Kong and the rest are in the PRC. The salary and benefit levels
of the Group’s employees are kept at a competitive level and
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus systems, which
are reviewed annually. Staff cost, including directors” emoluments,
was approximately HK$56 million for the year ended 31 March 2004.
Besides, the Company has also introduced share option schemes to
recognise the contributions of the employees to the growth of the
Group. The schemes have been or will be amended from time to
time to take into account changes in market conditions and the GEM
Listing Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERESYm R DI

Charges on Group Assets

At 31 March 2004, time deposits of HK$13,584,923 (2003:
HK$13,511,368) were pledged to banks to secure certain banking
facilities of the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments

The Group did not have any plans for material investment and
acquisition of material capital assets as at 31 March 2004.

Gearing Ratio

At 31 March 2004, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is calculated
as the ratio of total secured bank loans due after one year to
shareholders’ funds, was 0.02 (2003: 0.06).

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
and Any Related Hedges

Most of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. As the exchange rate of
Renminbi is fairly stable during the year under review, the exchange
rate risks of the Group were considered to be minimal. At 31 March
2004, no related hedges were made by the Group.

Contingent Liability

At 31 March 2004, the Company has undertaken to guarantee certain
banking facilities granted to two wholly-owned subsidiary to the extent
of HK$18.5 million (2003: HK$32 million).

At 31 March 2004, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (2003: Nil).
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EFERSREEEBER

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, aged 40, is an Executive Director,
Chief Executive Officer and one of the founders of the Group. He is
responsible for overall strategic planning and management of the
Group. With over 17 years of experience in the executive management,
Mr. H.K Lau was engaged in China trade before founding the Group.
He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a first class
honours Degree of Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering.

Mr. George Roger Manho, aged 41, is an Executive Director, Chief
Operating Officer and one of the founders of the Group. He is
responsible for marketing and project management of the Group.
With 16 years of experience in the control and automation industries,
electrical and mechanical projects and engineering management,
Mr. Manho was an electrical and mechanical engineer in an
engineering consultancy company. He is a Chartered Engineer and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers, The Institute of
Marine Engineers and The Hong Kong Institute of Marine Technology.
He holds a Master degree in Engineering Studies in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of Sydney and a Bachelor of Science
(Engineering) degree with first class honours in Marine Engineering
from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne.

Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung, aged 41, is an Executive Director, Chief
Technology Officer and one of the founders of the Group. He is
responsible for technical management and research and
development (R&D). With 20 years of experience in R&D and
production management, Mr. Cheng was the chief engineer of an
electronic company. He won the product design award of the Hong
Kong Awards for Industry for five times (one product design in each
0f 1993, 2000 and 2001 and two designs in 1997). He holds a Higher
Diploma in Electronics Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic.

Mr. Liv Hoi Wah, aged 35, is an executive and Chief Finance Officer
of the Group. He is responsible for financial management, accounting
and corporate development. He joined the Group in March 2000
and has 13 years of experience in auditing and corporate finance,
Mr. Liu was a financial controller of a private group. He graduated
from The London School of Economics and Political Science of the
University of London with a Bachelor of Science degree, first class
honours in Management Sciences. He is an associate member of
each of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Mr. Liu is the younger
brother of Mr. H.K. Lau.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen, JP, CBE, aged 64, is currently a director of
a number of public companies in Hong Kong. He has taken an active
role in the public services. Mr. Lee holds an honorary degree of
Doctor of Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an
honorary degree of Doctor of Laws from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee was appointed as the Company’s independent
non-executive director in December 2000.

Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter, CBE, CPM, aged 70, is currently the
chairman of a private company and a director of a number of
companies in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom. Mr. Tsao was the
former Secretary of Home Affairs of the Hong Kong Government. He
was appointed as the special envoy to Geneva in 1979. He was the
head of the Trade and Industry Departments in 1981 and the head of
the Government Information Services in 1983. He was appointed as
the Company’s independent non-executive director in December
2000.

Senior Management

Mr. Yu Cheuk Sin, aged 46, is the Managing Director of Quesco
Holdings Limited, QISL and QSL (together, the “Quesco”). Mr. Yu is
responsible for the overall business development and the operations
of Quesco. He has been involved in the IT industry since 1987 and
has previously held important marketing and management positions
with several international IT companies. Mr. Yu spearheads various
strategic partnering arrangements with several international vendors
for the pursuit of a number of sizeable IT project initiatives in the
region.

Mr. Wong Chi Cheung, Eddie, aged 41, is an Operations Director of
QISL. Mr. Wong is responsible for deploying skilled manpower
resources for QISL’s commissioned project assignments as well as
managing quality deliverables to clients. With over 17 years of systems
development and project management experience, Mr. Wong had
participated in various sizeable project implementations covering all
aspects of the system development life cycle.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Chow Wai Kwong, Barry, aged 338, is the Senior Project Manager
of QISL. Mr. Chow has over 13 years of experience in Information
Technology Consulting including 9 years engaged in project
management, system analysis and design, technical problem solving
and 4 years in application development and support. Mr. Chow
specialises in the areas of project management and technical
consultancy. His project experiences cover a wide range of industries
including government sector, semi-government organizations and
commercial clients. Mr. Chow holds a Bachelor of Computer Science
and Master of Computer Science from the Victoria University of
Technology (Australia).

Mr. Yuk Wai Kwok, Simon, aged 39, is the Senior Marketing
Manager of the Group and an Executive Director of ITES. Mr. Yuk is
responsible for business development, sales and marketing of the
Group. He is also in charge of the development of business co-
operation arrangement with vendor and partners in Hong Kong, PRC,
Macau and other overseas market. With 13 years of experience in
project management of IT industry, Mr. Yuk has been involved in the
sales and tendering process for several sizeable IT projects. He was
a project manager of a computer company for 10 years before joining
the Group in December 1999.

Mr. Law Man Kin, Raymond, aged 27, is the Sales Manager of the
Group. Mr. Law has 6 years experience from the sales and marketing
sectors with specific expertise and strong knowledge of RFID and
Smartcard technologies. Working closely with the Marketing Teams,
Mr. Law is responsible for market analysis and positioning, product
management and delivery and also performed the key strategic
alliance management for the company’s international vendors and
corporate clients. Mr. Law hold a Bachelor Degree of Engineering
with honours in Electronic Engineering from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology.

Mr. But Wui Fai, Cyrus, aged 36, is an Senior Project Manager of
the Group. Mr. But is responsible for the management of
commissioned project assignments of the Group. With 13 years of
experience in IT industry on project management, systems design
and implementation, Mr. But had achieved numerous project
assignments in government sectors, public utilities and public listed
companies. He worked for 10 years in an IT consultancy company in
Hong Kong before joining the Group in September 2001.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Bat Kwok Kwan, Baker, aged 29, is the Technical Manager of
the Group. Mr. Bat has more than 5 years in depth knowledge and
experience of the RFID and Smartcard technology sectors. With his
wealth of hands on knowledge and experience of the smartcard
industry Mr. Bat carries responsibility for the quality and performance
of equipment, projects, product and technology development for
Smartcard and RFID solutions. Mr. Bat works collaboratively within
ITE’s teams to ensure the effective management, integration and
implementation of the company’s complex RFID, smartcard, hardware
and software products and services. Mr. Bat hold a Bachelor Degree
of Engineering with honours in Computer Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Luk Wai Suen, aged 55, is an Senior Consultant of the Group.
Mr. Luk is responsible for advising the system development for new
product development and the design of software system. With 23
years of experience in R&D of system networking, Mr. Luk was the
deputy chief engineer of an electronics company for 13 years before
joining the Group in April 2000. He holds a degree in Computer
Application from The Shanghai Institute of Education.

Miss Yeung Yuen Chun, Mona, aged 30, is the Financial Controller
of the Group and an Executive Director of ITES. Miss Yeung is
responsible for managing the Group’s finance and accounting
operations, performing statutory and management reporting. Miss
Yeung has over 7 years in auditing, accounting and financial analysis.
She is an associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. She graduated
from the Hong Kong Baptist University.
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Report of the Directors

The directors submit their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2004.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 13 fo the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2004
are set out in note 10 fo the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2004 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 36 to 78.

No interim dividend (2003: HKS$Nil) was paid during the year. The
directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2004 (2003: HK$Nil).

Donation

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$3,000
(2003: HKS$Nil).

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
March 2004 are set out in notes 20 and 21 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis fo existing
shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

Share Option Schemes

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note
23 to the financial statements.

The directors consider that it is not appropriate to disclose a
theoretical value of the share options granted under the Company’s
share option schemes because a number of factors crucial for the
valuation cannot be determined, and, accordingly, any valuation of
the share option based on various speculative assumptions would
not be meaningful, but would be misleading to the shareholders of
the Company.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Shares
of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the year is
as follows:

B EST 8l

ANDNBRES BIFBEHRU B RRME23 -
ESHRRBANTYREERESEIREERESZ
XEEELNEE  ARARERESOHIECEXLE

LERRNE  AREBEANOEREREZHBEREED
LA BULESS  EIERREATRER -

BO - BERBEBOALRTGRYD

ARAXEINBRAIRAFTEARERED - BERE
OARRTZETRE -

T2 REED

RAFER  AEBEBSFROGHEEBRREESE
BREBRFREUT :

Percentage of the Group’s total

|

|

: CAREERERS L

T T

| Sales | Purchases

: HEH : RS

T T
The largest customer BEAZE : 69.6% : -
Five largest customers in aggregate hAZBESE : 79.8% : -
The largest supplier BEAHES | - | 8.2%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hAHERSE : - : 33.9%

l |

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the major customers and suppliers noted
above.
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Report of the Directors

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are setf out in note 24(a) to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent
Mr. George Roger Manho
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung

Mr. Liu Hoi Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen
Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter

Mr. Liu Hoi Wah will retire from the board in accordance with Article
108 of the Company’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, Mr. George Roger Manho, Mr. Cheng
Kwok Hung and Mr. Liu Hoi Wah have entered into service contracts
with the Company on 16 March 2004 for an initial fixed term of one
year, nine months, one year and one year, respectively commencing
from 1 April 2004 which will continue thereafter until terminated by
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Except for the above, none of the directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or
any Associated Corporations

As at 31 March 2004, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)), which were notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange®) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests and
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.40 to 5.58 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”), to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of the Company

SEECNPHB 2 Em

ARG~ EERAGFEETHEL IWHES ITEG
RANDESHEE AR » BRFBBAFAEDE
BILBRERNSH °
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SR - BERDRES KB
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HIREE S RBPERBE +RKRESTREIS R ZIR
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By (IBHBERE) SB+01K) <& - BRRODRES
PHBEDAKE (BEREZEHERMZZZRER
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Number of ordinary shares

l
| EARRY
: T T T T T
: : : : : : Percentage
: : : : : : of issued
| Personal |  Corporate | Family I Other I i share capital
Name of director | inferests | interests | inferests | inferests | Totdl | (BB
EEng : Az | 238s | REEs 0 HftEs Sit L RIAERW
: : : : : :
Mr. Lou Hon Kwong, Vinent | - ) 486,250,348 (1) | - - | 486,250,348 (L) | 53.58%
BERTE : | INote 2) (HfzE2) | : : :
| | | | | |
Mr. George Roger Manho | 1481422541 | - - L 1481422541 16.32%
me | | | | | |
| | | | | |
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung | 16621000 () | 486250348 U | - ~ 1 502871348 U | 55.41%
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Report of the Directors

Notes: B 5E

1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shares. 1. (UFZRABODRRE °

2. These shares are beneficially owned by Rax-Comm (BVI) 2. IEROHB—RNABREFESRIIL AT
Limited (“Rax-Comm”), a company incorporated in the British Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited ([Rax-Comm) BT £F
Virgin Islands. Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent and Mr. Cheng B - 22N FTE RGBT E D BB Rax-
Kwok Hung held 46.21% and 36.11% of the entire issued share Comm 46.21% 5 36. 1M%< B2 TRA °

capital of Rax-Comm, respectively.

(i) Interests in equity derivatives (as defined in (i) IR BEENRXRSFAEEERALTE L

the SFO) in, or in respect of, underlying B ok (EEREHBEAD
shares
As at 31 March 2004, the directors had the following personal R_SFNF=—_H=+—0 " ARTESBER
interests in options to subscribe for shares of the Company BANIBRESBILL 1 BT EXRDIR
granted at HK$1 under a share option scheme of the Company. BANTIRMD CBREDHEBLUT 2B AR
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one me BRERETRSBEARBBE—RERD -
share.
Number of Price per
Number shares acquired ' share to be

i i i i i
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
I of options I I I onexercise of | paid on
: outstanding at : : : options during : exercise of
| 31 March 2004 | | Period during | theyear | options
: RZSSME : : which options : FRTERRE : TERRER
Name of director | =BA=+-B#%X | Dategranted | exercisable | TREN 0 AXEW
EBiE | ARNWRENE | mHEE RGN . RGIBE | SRES
| | | | |
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent : 6,109,440 (L) : 12 February 2001 : 21 August 2001 to 11 February 2011 : - : HK$0.095
BEHEE | . €, _TET-F\B°+-BF | 0095ET
| b i “2——%2B+-B | :
Mr. George Roger Manho : 4,000,000 (L) : 12 February 2001 : 21 August 2001 to 11 February 2011 : - : HK$0.095
BRELE [ [ “EE-F “SE-F)\A_F+-HE I 0.09587T
: | —B+78 "8 —#I8+-8 , :
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung | 4,000,000 () | 12 February 2001 | 21 August 2001 fo 11 February 2011 | - HKS0.095
HEIETYE : : —E5— : “SE-F/\B-+-B% : : 0.0958 7
| | “B+28 _B——8"Bt+-08 1 [
Mr. Liu Hoi Wah : 19,12,640 () | 12 February 2001 | 21 August 2001 fo 11 February 2011 | S HKS0.095
fBEEL | \ B%-% |, ITBEB2-F/\B°{+-BF | L 0.095B7
: : “At+-8 : “£—F"HF+-H : :
Mr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen I 1,760,000 (L) 1 12 February 2001 1 21 August 2001 to 11 February 2011 1 - HK$0.095
SHRLE : \ "2B-%, C"22-%\B_+-B%F | 0095ET
| ' Zptoe ! “g— £ A0 | |
Note: MysE -
The letfter “L” denotes a long position in the shares. [UZRRBORRE °
EEEWE
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Report of the Directors

(il Aggregate interest in the shares and (i) AR KA < RS
underlying shares of the Company f

N

N

Percentage to

| | | |
i i Aggregate i i the issued share
I I number in I I capital of the
: Aggregate number : underlying : : Company
Name of director : in ordinary shares : shares : Total : ERNISHT
BEENE : ZEREH : 8 B AR {7 48 2 : = : BRAZBNEE
| | | |
Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent : 486,250,348 (L) : 6,109,440 (L) : 492,359,788 (L) : 54.25%
BEXTE [ [ [ [
Mr. George Roger Manho : 148,142,254 (L) : 4,000,000 (L) : 152,142,254 (L) : 16.76%
BRERE : : : :
Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung I 502,871,348 (L) ! 4,000,000 (L) ' 506,871,348 (L) ! 55.85%
MBS I | | |
Mr. Liu Hoi Wah : -, l9m2640(l 19112640 () 2.11%
BIBERYE : : : :
Mr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen I - 1,760,000 (L) 1,760,000 (L) 0.19%
FBARSEE : : : :
| | | |
Note: By st
The letfter “L” denotes a long position in the shares. UEZRRBORRE °
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2004, none of the directors, bR DM PTIRES I R_BEENFE=F=+—8 "=
chief executive of the Company or their associates had any interests Z - THRIABS BB A LT ERIRS HIRHIE
in the shares or debentures of, or short positions in the shares of, 15.7R158FRANTREFEIBIHEB (EE BB H
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning FRETTF) BERDAESCERIKS (BER
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company BE BRI ERERBRATEHES 2 fewm Tk
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of B) ' AINBIAREZBERNSEI2RFUGECE
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they have taken ot - URIRRIZER EHAR RIS 5.40 58 5. 58K PTH
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which BN AERNE AR R ETELDIAE -

were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.40 to 5.58 of the GEM Listing Rules, were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

EERRE
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Rights to
Acquire Shares or Debt Securities

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors” and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporations”, as at 31 March 2004, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors and chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, including
debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the directors and chief executive of the Company or their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of
the Company

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2004, the Company had
been notified of the following interests, being 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company:

SEERITBBHBERDANETFE
75 <

BRULRL [ESROBBERALDIXRBEL T 2R
o~ MERORESRLBIREIN - R_SSF
=RB=+—8 AR90EHNBATHESR{ITZL
B EARTEFROTEBBTEZSBALRLTAE
TEMEANBRBZROAEFES (BIEES) MES
Mt MARTESRITBBEAAK ST < EENED
KT N\BRSUBETOTIRBLALITLZE
A MESEEOSER -

SRR ANZZEKREm

ARORBEZHRPISBIBHEREFECERREESS
MAES R_SSNF=R=+—08 UTFTREH%
BANTSETRASRAU Lo s :

: : Percentage
: Ordinary : of total
[ shares held | issued shares
I I —
| Fii 5 . B TRRG
| mEREE | enSst
- [ |
Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited (Note 1) Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited (Ut | 486,250,348 | 53.58%
Mr. George Roger Manho [Note 2) Bt (Et2) | 148,142,254 | 16.32%
! !
Notes: B =
1. These shares have been disclosed as the corporate interests of the 1. IERODERIBSROBURBINRALAIRAKENT
relevant directors in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief 2R - HERDRESRKE | —MKRERESLZ
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying NI °
Shares and Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporations”.
2. These shares have been disclosed as the personal interests of the 2. LSROEBREZROTEBARANIAMENTY

director in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporations”.
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Report of the Directors

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the latest five years is set out on page 79 of the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2004.

Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2004, the directors were not aware of any business
or interest of each director, management shareholder and the
respective associates of each that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which
any such persons have or may have with the Group.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen and Mr. Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter,
and an executive director, Mr. Liu Hoi Wah. Mr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen
was appointed the Chairman of the audit committee in compliance
with the requirements as set out in Rules 5.23 to 5.27 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The audit committee meets with the Group’s senior
management and external auditors to review the effectiveness of the
internal control systems and the annual report of the Group. The
audit committee held one meeting during the year.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000.

Board Practices and Procedures

The Company has complied with the Board Practices and Procedures
as set out in Rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2004.

EERRE
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Report of the Directors

Auditors 1B

On 4 March 2003, KPMG tendered their resignation as the auditors RTCBEE=F=—RANE - EFESSOSHEMEFELS
of the Company. On 25 March 2003, RSM Nelson Wheeler were NOREE - IR_FBE=F=—H_+hHB 8%
appointed as auditors of the Company by the board of directors to ERPESSENTRKEED - DUERTLILEIR < MR
fill in the casual vacancy. ZEfR o

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, RSM Nelson Wheeler, RBESSMTHIALRITKEE - EEBRZEZF
will be put at the forthcoming annual general meeting. REBRREFAS CRZ -

By order of the board of directors AEESWm

Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent +/%

Chairman 2UiEA

Hong Kong, 11 June 2004 58 _EFNFRS+—H
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Report of the Auditors

RSM Nelson Wheeler
BoWOEF MG

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ITE (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 36 to 78 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and
Auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial
statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant fo the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the
Company and of the Group, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

34 (e G e
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Report of the Auditors B ER S

Opinion =5

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the ZMIBR  MBRKRESEQANVHRE EQT
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2004 E SEBR_F=ENF=—H=-+—B2#ERR
and of the results and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended N BEEHEZXBLFECKERIBLAMAE 1
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure EEREB(RIRPIICRERTCLSHE -
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler EBHRHXSHEMT

Certified Public Accountants HEES5ED

Hong Kong, 11 June 2004 58 _SFEENFERS+—0H
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RS U ER
BE_RENE=F=+— B LEE ETIE)

statements.

consoL

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

ITE (Holdings) Limited % ANNUAL REPORT 2004

2004 } 2003
“E3mE | CE®=
Notes $ : $
By £ 7T 7T
Turnover —F ¥f] 2,10 61,842,809 : 77,301,806
|
|
Cost of services rendered BIRHEHRE < MA (52,051,430) | (74,852,387)
Cost of goods sold BEEY WA (678,662) | (560,297)
|
|
9,112,717 : 1,889,122
Other revenue H AN & 516,425 | 347,164
Other net loss HihE 534 (88,035) (22,445)
Other staff costs HtE8 THA (6,760,392) | (7,705,661)
Depreciation and amortisation TE K (2,260,196) ! (2,656,949)
Other operating expenses HiniEEm=< (11,837,894) | (12,650,006)
|
|
Loss from operations =) 5= (11,317,375) (20,798,775)
Finance costs A& AR A 4 (721,055) | (582,385)
|
|
Loss from ordinary activities MRBiAI B RER :
before taxation iR 4 (12,038,430) ! (21,381,160)
|
|
Taxation RE 5 - 167,399
1
|
Loss attributable to shareholders BRREILEEE 8 (12,038,430) | (21,213,761)
|
|
Loss per share SREE 9 |
|
Basic =R (1.33 cents) | (2.34 cents)
Diluted % N/ATREA | (2.28 cents)
l
The notes on pages 42 to 78 form an integral part of these financial FERETENNEBR I FUHERET < —ILD -



Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

moBEBRELR

RIBENF=B=+—8 (UBxIIE)

| 2004 | 2003
. C|TOE , BB
| |
| |
Notes | $ $
e ! T | 7
Non-current assets EREEE : :
Fixed assets BEEE 1 \ 1,366,125 1 2,189,258
Goodwill B2 12 7,289,408 8,240,200
Investment securities BB 5 14 w 2,484,010 1 2,722,406
| |
| |
11,139,543 13,151,864
| |
| |
Current assets mMENEE ! !
Trading securities BEEZS 15 l 98,750 | 63,010
Inventories = 16 : 2,642,430 : 3,833,791
Trade and other receivables JE SR LAt AR AR 17 . 15,600,508 23,693,074
Deposits and prepayments SRS H#BA ! 640,492 | 1,978,619
Pledged bank balances KB RTER 26(d) |, 13,584,923 | 13,511,368
Bank and cash balances BAORIRE/BE ! 1,131,942 | 1,820,974
| |
| |
| 33,699,045 | 44,900,836
T T
Current liabilities mEaE : :
Creditors and accrued charges BIUERRESTER 18 10,743,083 | 12,770,888
Short term borrowings CHEBs 20 1 8,923,824 | 6,405,021
Current portion of long term RESEBRITER | |
secured bank loan =2 BUVHR &R 1 21 1 1,666,680 | 1,666,680
| 21,333,587 | 20,842,589
Net current assets mEEERE 12,365,458 | 24,058,247
1 1
Total assets less current liabilities 48 5 7 ¥ % &) & (% | 23,505,001 37,210,111
| |
Non-current liabilities EREBEE : :
Secured bank loan BEBERTER 21 | 416,630 | 2,083,310
Net assets BEFE | 23,088371 | 35,126,801
Capital and reserves BARRGER : :
Share capital B 22 ! 9,075,360 1 9,075,360
Reserves B } 14,013,011 26,051,441
Shareholders’ funds BRREE : 23,088,371 | 35,126,801
| |

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 11 June ERER_SENFEB+—BRERBRRETIE -

2004
Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent George Roger Manho EbE$ &
Director Director =2 5=

ENETBENNEBRUSZUHRRZ—BD °

aREAMR 37
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

The notes on pages 42 to 78 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REIREMEBEK
BE_RENE=F=+— B LEE ETIE)

: 2004 : 2003
| TEBONE | “®B=
| |
Note : 5 $
By 5 | T 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING EERBRERE } }
ACTIVITIES [ [
Loss before taxation R AIE 1R | (12,038,430 (21,381,160)
Adjustments for: o NS IBIEHFHEE : :
Depreciation e ! 1,309,404 1 1,706,157
Amortisation of goodwill BHEE : 950,792 | 950,792
Bad debts written off 122 HR i 38 ! - 4,171,652
Net unrealised (gain)/loss on BNV EEIR : :
trading securities carried LEBEBSHREBIR | |
at fair value (&) /&8 | (57,040) ! 56,510
Loss on disposals of fixed assefs HEEBEEERIER | 160,515 13,842
Impairment loss for REBSZBEBE ! !
investment securities : 238,396 : 107,783
Gain on disposals of HESEERHS < W ! |
trading securities : (33,588) ! (34,410)
Dividend income BRI | (1,423) | -
Interest income A RN | (92,312) ! (132,802
Interest expense MNRER : 721,055 : 582,385
| |
Operating loss before working REEETZER : :
capital changes LSS BB | (8,842,631) | (13,959,251)
Decrease in trade and FEUS R EL A FE U AR -R B ‘ :
other receivables [ 8,092,566 | 13,147,824
Decrease/(Increase) in deposits SRS EHER : :
and prepayments B, (320) ! 1,338,127 | (721,201)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories BEERD, (E0) : 1,191,361 ! (315,107)
Decrease in creditors and Y RESTERBD | :
accrued charges : (2,027,805) 1 (2,367,679)
|
T I
Cash used in operations EHTARE : (248,382) | (4,215,414
Interest paid ARz | (721,055) | (580,792)
Interest element of finance lease MEHES N SFB0D | !
rentals paid ‘ = (1,593)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBNER ! - (405,675)
I I
‘ [
Net cash used in operating activities ~ AEXEHMARESFE ! (969,437) | (5,203,474)
! [
I I
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETERERE : !
ACTIVITIES ‘ }
Purchases of fixed assets BEEEEE ! (647,286) | (633,068)
Purchases of trading securities BEESGS : (155,900) | (70,750)
Proceeds from disposals of HEBEEE ! |
fixed assets ZPTERE : 500 ! 16,780
Proceeds from disposals of HESEZES | :
trading securities 2 BTERIE | 210,788 1 117,940
Dividend received BUR S : 1423 =
Interest received EIRF R ! 92,312 | 132,802
‘ [
I I
Net cash used in investing activities £ & B8 ARESFE | (498,163) 1 (436,296)
|

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REIREMEBEK
BE_RENE=F=+— B LEE ETIE)

| 2004 | 2003
. CmBRE |, —BB=

| |

| |
Note | $ $
e | T | 7

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING HEEDRSAE 1 1

ACTIVITIES } }
Increase in pledged bank deposits KIPRITEIRIBI0 | (73,555) ! (4,116,540)
Repurchase of shares OEBSETZRD ! - (45,162)
New bank loans FIRTER l 2,576,948 7,000,000
Repayment of bank loans BRRTER : 1,666,680) | (2,583,548)

Capital element of finance lease MEEESCERZLD ! !

| |
rentals paid | - (50,314)

| |

| |

Net cash generated from RETHELEREFE | |
financing activities \ 836,713 1 204,436

| |

| |

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERRESEMRD } }
CASH EQUIVALENTS ! (630,887) ! (5,435,334)

| |

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS KROR—BZHRE | ‘
AT 1 APRIL RRESEY l (31,836) | 5,403,498

1 1

| |

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS KR=RA=+—BZRE ! w
AT 31 MARCH RESZEN 1 (662.723) | (31,836)

| |

| |

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RERAEEEMESER ! ‘

| |

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Z5th | i
Bank and cash balances RT RIS ER : 1131942 1,820,974
Bank overdrafts RITES 20 1 1,794,665 (1,852,810

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=A=+-BzHRe 1 1
AT 31 MARCH RAESEEN } (662,723) | (31,836)

The notes on pages 42 to 78 form an integral part of these financial ENRETBENREBRISUHERT 2 —LD -

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

S RIEFBER

BE_FRNFE=RA=1+—B1LFE CLETIE)

I I I
: : Reserves :
| | R |
| | |
| I T T 1
| | | | |
| | | | |
I I | . Retained
| share |,  Share | Merger | profits/
: capital : premium : reserve : (Accumulated :
I (note22) 1 (note 24(b)l 1 (note 24(c)) 1  losses) | Total
COBE | REE | SHEE | RSBR/
: (fy5t22) : (B 5+ 24(b)) : (Ffrst24c) | (RHEER) : @t
| | | : ;
| $ $ $ $ $
: T, T T T, T
1 1 1 1 1
_ _ | | | | |
Balance at 1 April 2002 S | | | | |
mE—-B#4% | 9079960 | 22856811 | 10748910 | 13,700,043 | 56385724
| | | | |
| | | | |
Repurchase of shares DERD : (4,600) : (40,562) 1 -1 - (45,162)
|
Loss for the year AEEBE | - - - (21,213,761) 1 (21,213,761
| | |
| | : : |
Balance at 31 March 2003 R_BR= : : : : :
=BA=1t—DBi5t# | 9,075,360 1 22,816,249 | 10,748,910 (7,513,718) 1 35,126,801
| | | |
| | : | |
Loss for the year AEEBE : - : - : = : (12,038,430) : (12,038,430
Balance at 31 March 2004 R_EZME : : : : :
ZA=+-Bf#% | 9075360 | 22816249 | 10748910 | 19,552,148 |  23,088,37)
1 1 L L 1

The notes on pages 42 to 78 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Balance Sheet — The Company BEREBXR —AEAALT

At 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ROSENF=F=+—8 (UBTIE)
: 2004 : 2003
 _BE0NFE | TE=E=
| |
| |
Notes [ $ $
I A 7
Non-current assets FERBEE : :
| |
| |
Interests in subsidiaries S B A T S 13 | 23,453,241 | 30,992,474
| |
| |
Current assets MEEE : :
| |
| |
Other receivables EL A fE UN AR 7R 17 ! 26,374 | 189,645
— | |
Bank and cash balances RTRIRTEER | 3,872 62,772
| |
| |
! 30,246 : 252,417
|
T T
Current liabilities ST 1 | l
| |
| |
Accrued charges and other payables fE5fE F & E I fE (T 2R 18 ! 395,116 1 297,610
| |
| |
Net current liabilities mEaEEE | (364,870) | (45,193)
Net assets BEFE | 23,088,371 30,947,281
| |
| |
Capital and reserves BRR R ! ‘
| |
| |
Share capital A 22 9,075,360 9,075,360
Reserves 1 24 | 14,013,011 ! 21,871,921
Shareholders’ funds RREE | 23,088,371 30,947,281
l |
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 11 June 2004 SEESR_FFENF B +—BRERBREHIZ -
Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent George Roger Manho 2% SRy
Director Director - o
The notes on pages 42 to 78 form an integral part of these financial FE422 788NN BRI S FERET < —2pD ©
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Statements of Standard Accounting Practice
(“SSAPs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprises Market of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is historical cost as modified by the revaluation of
trading securities.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial
statements are consistent with the previous year except that the
Group has adopted the revised SSAP 12 “Income taxes” which
became effective for the current financial year.

The principal effect of the implementation of the revised statement
is in relation to deferred tax. In previous years partial provision
was made for deferred tax using income statement liability method,
that is, a liability was recognised in respect of timing differences
arising, except where those timing differences were not expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future. The revised statement requires
the adoption of a balance sheet liability method, whereby deferred
tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, with limited exceptions. The adoption
of the revised statement has not had any material effect on the
results for the current year or prior accounting periods.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up fo 31
March. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power or issued
share capital, or controls the composition of the board of directors.
Subsidiaries are considered to be controlled if the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less any impairment losses. The results of a
subsidiary is accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The cost of fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Subsequent
expenditure relating to a fixed asset that has already been
recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset when it
is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the
originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset,
will flow to the Group. All other subsequent expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 4 years

Furniture and fixtures 4 years

Computer and other equipment 4 years

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a fixed
asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are
recognised in the income statement on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s share of the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at
the date of the acquisition.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is amortised to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
its estimated useful life. Goodwill is stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses.

Investment securifies

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified
long-term strategic purpose, are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. The carrying amounts of individual investment
securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess
whether the fair values have declined below the carrying amounts.
When a decline other than temporary has occurred, the carrying
amount of such investment securities is reduced to its fair value.
The amount of the reduction is recognised as an expense in the
income statement.

Trading securities

Trading securities are stated in the balance sheet at fair value on
the basis of their quoted market prices, on an individual
investment basis. Changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement as they arise. Securities are presented as
trading securities when they were acquired principally for the
purpose of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price
or dealer's margin.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to identify indications that any assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period
in which it arises.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling
price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect
of goodwill is reversed only if the loss was caused by a specific
external event of an exceptional nature that is not expected to
recur, and the increase in recoverable amount relates clearly to
the reversal of the effect of that specific event.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
impairment losses is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated on the first in first out basis and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to render services or make the sales.

When inventories are consumed in rendering services or sold,
carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period when the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value,
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Service contracts

Contract revenue on the rendering of services represents the
agreed contract amount. Costs of rendering services comprise
labour and other costs of personnel directly engaged in providing
the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based on
the percentage of completion of the transaction, provided that
the revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs to
completion can be measured reliably. The percentage of
completion is established by reference to the costs incurred to
date as compared to the estimated fotal costs to be incurred
under the fransaction.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where confract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated
as an amount due from contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
treated as an amount due to contract customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Trade receivables

Provision is made against trade receivables to the extent they
are considered to be doubtful. Trade receivables in the
consolidated balance sheet are stated net of such provision, if
any.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management within three
months from the date of the advance.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of assets remain with the leasing company are accounted for as
operating leases. Rentals applicable to such operating leases
are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the fransaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the balance sheet of overseas subsidiaries
expressed in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
whilst the income statement is translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates. The resulting translation
differences are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) Service revenue

Service revenue comprises revenue from smartcard
systems, radio frequency identification (“RFID”) and
information technology and related service contracts, and
electrical and mechanical installation work and related
service contracts.

Service revenue is recognised on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Service contracts”.

(ii) Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the services
are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Income from maintenance services

Income from maintenance services is recognised on a
straight line basis over the term of the maintenance service
contracts.

Income received or receivable in respect of services which
have not been completed on or before the balance sheet
date are shown in the balance sheet as deferred
maintenance income.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered and
the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans, including contributions payable under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as expenses in the income
statement as incurred.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long-service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) The financial impact of share options granted under the
share option scheme is not recorded in the Company’s or
the Group’s balance sheet and no employee benefit cost or
obligation is recognised until such time as the options are
exercised. Upon the exercise of share options, equity is
increased by the amount of the proceeds received. Options
which are cancelled prior fo their exercise date, or which
lapse, are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has chosen business segment information as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly atftributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade receivables and
fixed assets. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process,
except to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group enterprises within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
year to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible)
that are expected to be used for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets,
interest-bearing loans, borrowings, corporate and financing
expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the
party are subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as
adjusted for items which are non-assessable or disallowable.
Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the rate prevailing for the
year based on the assessable profit for the year less allowable
losses, if any, brought forward.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the balance sheet
liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. Taxation rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred
taxation. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred taxation is charged or credited to the income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case the deferred taxation is also dealt with in
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2. TURNOVER AND REVENUE

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are sef out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised
in turnover during the year is as follows:

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

EXBRINGD

ARAREBZEBRRELER - BRI ERE
EEEINN SR SNSRI

TR SOEEZRFNEEBRIAZEZRU T ¢

} 2004 } 2003
I TEZ0E | TBB=
| |
1 $ $
| T ! 7T
Turnover =30 : :
Provision of smartcard systems, RFID RILERE R R ~ 514R : :
and information technology services FHR RERAR RS ! !
— Service revenue — AR 75 W &t 12,592,776 11,473,336
— Income from maintenance —RERBIA : :
services ! 2,755,186 ! 2,507,751
— Sales of service related products —HERFBERFERD : 1,089,242 : 940,210
| |
| |
: 16,437,204 : 14,921,297
Consultancy fee income BERIE R A ! 44,534,191 | 46,102,780
Service revenue from provision of RHEKSLETEZ : :
electrical and mechanical AR 75 U 2t : :
installation work ! 871,414 16,277,729
: :
61,842,809 | 77,301,806
Other revenue H AN 7 | |
Interest on bank deposits RTERFB \ 92,312 | 132,802
Dividend income B2 : 1,423 =
Other income HAUA } 422,690 | 214,362
: 516,425 : 347,164
| 62,359,234 | 77,648,970
l l
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

OTHER NET LOSS HithEi8/F58
: 2004 : 2003
Lk ..
| |
| |
: $ : $
I T TG
| |
| |
Exchange (loss)/gain 2 (B1E) /IS | (18,148) | 13,497
Gain on disposals of trading securities Hj%f“é;fé%zu%é : 33,588 : 34,410
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on trading BNV BEINRCEERS : :
securities carried at fair value KBRS (BEB)FE 57,040 (56,510)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEEBEEECEBIE : 160,515) | (13,842)
: (88,035) | (22,445
| |
LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE IRl H RSB <218
TAXATION
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation is arrived at after BREN OSSR ERDINR -
charging:
: 2004 : 2003
IR = == T =R =
| |
| |
l o i
| |
Finance costs: RMEMA : : :
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts WITERRBZNZR | 721,055 580,792
Finance lease charges MEHESEH [ - 1,593
| |
| |
I 721,055 1 582,385
| |
I I
Other items: =R == : :
Amortisation of goodwill BERE | 950,792 | 950,792
Auditors’ remuneration R B B0 B <2 | 281,746 | 321,542
Bad debts written off 122 AR il 5H [ - 4,171,652
Cost of inventories FEAAR | 3,455268 9,402,740
Depreciation: IE ! I I
Owned fixed assets HEECEE | 1,309,404 1,681,459
Leased fixed assets HEBEEE : - 24,698
Impairment loss on investment KREBHZBEBIE | |
securities : 238,396 : 107,783
Operating lease charges: minimum CESHEBH - HEWZE |
lease payments for hire of properties 2 EIEHEETRER | 1,874,000 | 2,677,002
Provision for doubtful debts RIE%EE [ 497,713 1 -
Staff costs including directors’ BEEEHERBKRBR | :
emoluments and retirement StEIERCETHA [ !
benefit scheme contributions | 56,114,267 | 60,300,634
l l
SR A AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. TAXATION o 18

Wik PZRIELSE

(a) The amount of taxation in the consolidated income (a) =)
statement represents:

} 2004 } 2003
| CmEmE | —g8=
| |
T T
| |
| f | $
| JT | 7T
| |
| |

Hong Kong profits tax %%ﬂ (=i ! !

— overprovision in previous year fiﬁ R e : _ 167,399

| |

BRASEEFANIWEBRRBF - S HE
BBHERIWEBINISRER -

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and overseas profits
tax is required since the Group has no assessable profit
for the year.

AEEBERAGECRBEBHREAS
ERRABSFTECEHTRUO D :

(b) The taxation on the Group’s loss before taxation differs (b) Bl
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

applicable tax rate of the Group as follows:

} 2004 } 2003
I Senfes S S
l l
: $ $
I JG I JC
| |
| |
Loss before taxation IRRRAIEIE | (12,038,430) ! (21,381,160)
T T
Tax at the applicable tax rate RIEBERRERIRE | (2,250,685 (4,129,530)
Tax effect of income that is not REERRR AN FHE ! !
taxable in determining ERPARZRBFZE : :
taxable profit ! (36,929) ! (1,15)
Tax effect of expenses that are SE R RRR WA : :
not deductible in determining X\j}[ﬁﬁﬁaﬁiz : :
taxable profit MIE I 194,175 | 1,457,685
Tax effect of unused tax losses ﬂiﬁ@w&ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ : :
not recognised BEICRBEE ! 2,837,121 1 2,825,064
Tax effect of prior year's tax FRAPACREBEZ : :
losses utilised this year mIBEE ! (743,682) ! (149,883)
Underprovision for the year E?EMEE)JL“E*F : - (2,221)
Overprovision in prior year Bt FE B : ol 167,399
Taxation charges REEH : - 167,399

The applicable tax rate represents the weighted average
of the rates of taxation prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements A FSSRIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)
5. TAXATION (continued) 18 ()

(c) Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary (c) BREBH R ERRF IR 2 EER T
differences and tax losses carried forward due to NBSWABE > WEEREHFERRAH
uncertainty of realisation of the related tax benefit through REBECEERBEEEFLER - iR
the future taxable profits. The tax effect on temporary EEMNF=—"F=+—08 ' SFEERKE
differences and unrecognised tax losses was RRIBEE R IES EH5,240,0007T (=
approximately $5,240,000 (2003: $2,659,000) as at 31 BE=F=B=+—08 : 2,659,0007T) °
March 2004.

6. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS SN

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules RIBAIZE R EMAR A REEBCA ITIEAD B 161REK

and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as BECESMEZFEBAON

follows:

} 2004 } 2003
| CRE|UE 1 BB =
| |
| |
|
‘ 5 $
I JG I JG
| |
| |
Fees BE : 480,000 : 480,000
Basic salaries, allowances and ¥ - 2R ! !
other benefits =g uyr=R] l 1,774,452 1,814,000
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & A 78l 5t & X : 39,600 | 40,300
2,294,052 2,334,300
l l

The executive directors, Mr. Lau Hon Kwong, Vincent, Mr. George REE_SENF=_F=+—08ILFE  HITES

Roger Manho, Mr. Cheng Kwok Hung and Mr. Liu Hoi Wah B2k E - BRESE  EFELSERREES

received emoluments of $579,484 (2003: $588,000), $579,484 4D BIEN579,48470 (—EE =1 : 588,0007T) °

(2003: $588,000), $579,484 (2003: $588,000), and $75,600 (2003: 579,484 0 (_EE =1 : 588,0007T) * 579,4847C

$90,300), respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2004. (CZB= =% : 588,0007T) * &75,60070 (—EEE=

F : 90,3007T) 2 B <z -

The independent non-executive directors who are also the REE"SENF=—B=+—D0BILFE ' FNTE

members of Audit Committee, Mr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen and Mr. ERBREESNESTBRIEEREERTED A

Tsao Kwang Yung, Peter received the directors’ fees of $240,000 I ER 2 S B <= R #1240,0000T (B = F

(2003: $240,000) and $240,000 (2003: $240,000), respectively, 240,0007T) K2240,0007C (— 5555 =14 : 240,0007T)

for the year ended 31 March 2004. 2 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements A FSSRIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)

6. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued) S5 (8)

HH
>=
=~

The emoluments of the directors (executive and independent non- TEBIFEHNCTESMENF FNI&EHE :

executive) is within the following band:

: 2004 : 2003
P e
| |
: Number of : Number of
: directors | directors
: 2= : EE=2 (5
T T
$Nil - $1,000,000 = 7T —1,000,0007T : 6 | 6
l l
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the directors as an FR - AEBWHOQESSUME - (FREEES
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation MAARES - SHERIAREB b2 22 B) o Bt I8
for loss of office. g o
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FRASESHES T OUBBENEADRMEE
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year. Bl <z < 2 8F -
7.  INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS e AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none (2003: RAREHFALTR S (CBSE=F: BLDR
none) are directors. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect B3 - ifima#H ALz REW T :
of the five individuals are as follows:
| 2004 | 2003
| 75555@& | :E@E@:
| |
: 5 s
| T JT
Basic salaries, allowances and EF - 26K : :
other benefits HAom Rl | 4038894 4,210,722
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & A 78 F 5t & {H X : 60,000 ! 60,000
| 4,098,894 4,270,722
| |
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Notes to the Financial Statements A FSSRIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)

7. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS e AT (18&)
(continued)

The emoluments of the five individuals with the highest hfimzaH ALT2MENFE IS :
emoluments are within the following bands:

1 2004 } 2003
L B2 E 1 CFBE=
|
l ‘
: Number of : Number of
| individuals individuals
l AB A
I} I}
|
$Nil - $1,000,000 £t —1,000,00070 1 4 4
$1,000,001 fo $1,500,000 1,000,0015C —1,500,0007C 1 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest TR AEBUWEOAUSESFH A TSUME - 1E
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the REBBENALAER  FHEANARNEB R o2
Group or as compensation for loss of office. BB S o
8. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS B 55 I 45 5 18
The consolidated loss attributable to shareholders includes a loss KBGO BIERIE—2£ R #7,858,9107c 2 18
of $7,858,910 (2003: $1,351,161) which has been dealt with in the T EREF :1,351,16100) ZEREERALNT 2
financial statements of the Company. MR N IR o
9. LOSS PER SHARE EBREB
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREAXREIE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the EBRERNBEENIZBEESEE12,038,430
loss attributable to shareholders of $12,038,430 (2003: TT(CEE=1F : 21,213,7610) RERB &
$21,213,761) and the weighted average of 907,536,000 TR 2 NS 19 B2 £1907,536,0000% (—=
ordinary shares (2003: 907,759,068 shares) in issue during E—=1F : 907,759,068f) BBBEE °
the year.
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREEEIE
No diluted loss per share is presented for the year as BREAWEBCITESEBER - NISE
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence AT Z R EEE -
during the year.
The calculation of diluted loss per share of last year is EFEocERBERE I REBEELEIR
based on the loss attributable to shareholders of 21,213,7617C * 5 BT & & 858 3@ R BT
$21,213,761 and the weighted average of 930,321,740 TR EEHAEZL 2 NEEIDE &
ordinary shares after adjusting for the effects of all potential 930,321,740 Z@BRETE ©

dilutive ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

9. LOSS PER SHARE BREIB
(c) Reconciliations (c) ¥R
} 2004 } 2003
| CRR0E | CR8=
T T
' Number of | Number of
: shares : shares
\ =8 G o
| |
| |
Weighted average number of ordinary BIESIEBREABGELS ! !
| |
shares used in calculating ZER - FIIH | |
basic loss per share | 907,536,000 |, 907,759,068
Deemed issue of ordinary shares for WIRIEREA B | |
no consideration SRR I = 22,562,672
| |
| |
Weighted average number of ordinary RIESIEBRESHIES | |
shares used in calculating diluted ZER - FIIH ! !
loss per share | 907,536,000 , 930,321,740
l l

10. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because
this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

(a)

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business

segments:

Smartcard systems,
RFID and information
technology services

Consultancy fee
income

Electrical and
mechanical
installation work

ISR P A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The provision of smartcard

systems, RFID and
information technology
services

The provision of information
technology consultancy
services

The provision of electrical and
mechanical installation work

DB S
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BEEFRH RIAEREFRIR - FIR
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Notes to the Financial Statements A FSSRIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)
10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) D8RS (1)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) LEFHEo ()

Smartcard systems,
RFID and information

T T T T
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
I technology services | Consultancy I Electrical and I
: BRERAS - HIERE : services : mechanical installation : Consolidated
| REABBKRE | B R | BERRIBERE @R8
l T l T l T l T
| 204 ! 2003 | 2004 | 2008 , 2004 ! 2008 2004 ' 2003
| TEENE | CRE=F  CSBNE | “SB=F | “SENE | “BE=F | SINE | S8=
! | ! | ! | ! |
[ [ [ [
. | 1 | 1 | 51 5, 5
: ol T, ol T, ol i ol e
, | | , | , |
) | ' | ) | ) |
TURNOVER S | | : | : | : |
Revenue g | 16,437,204 ' 14,921,297 | 44,534,191 " 46,102,780 | 871,414 ' 16,277,729 | 61,842,809 ' 77,301,806
' : ' : ' : ' :
| | | |
RESULTS E3 | ! | ! | ' . '
Segment results ABER | 11582,017 | 15,509,026 3,924,620 | 3414096 | [161,962], (3,704760]" (7,819,559), (15,799,690]
Unallocated corporate revenue  R$ D EA T & : I : I : I : 516,425 1 347,164
Unallocated corporate expenses AP HBATER | : | : | : | 14,014,241]: (5,346,249)
| | | |
I ! I ! I ! I !
Loss from operations TEEE I ' I : | : | 111,317,375]: (20,798,775)
Finance costs RMEMA | : : | | : | 721,058, 582,385)
| | | |
T T T T
Loss before foxafion REIEE | : | : | : | 012,038,4301, (21381160
Taxation RE I I I -1 167,399
: | : | : | : |
[ [ [ [
Loss affributable fo shareholders 12 2 {5 548 ; | ' | ! | ! (12,038,43001 (21,213,761
' | ' | ' | ' |
ASSETS A% i ' i ' i ' i '
I ! I ! I ! I !
Segment assets DPEE 1 25,670,840 : 30,025,360 1 9,102,274 : 12,095,595 1 2,023,905 : 3,836,445 1 36,797,019 : 45,957,400
Unallocated corporate assels kP AEEE : , : , : , : 8,041,569 | 12,095,300
T + T + T + T +
Consolidated fofal assets ROREE : : : : : : | 44,838,586 | 58,052,700
LIABILITIES B i | i | i | i |
| | | |
Segment liabilities DEEE : 6,208,557 1 5,611,724 : 8,837,768 1 6,146,929 : 1121116 1 2,545,070 : 16,167,441 1 14,303,723
Unallocated corporate liabiliies K$HEEE I : I : I : I 5,582,776: 8,622,176
| | | |
| T | T | T | T
Consolidated total liabilities moRaE I : I : I : 121,750,217 : 22,925,899
| | | |
[ T [ T [ T [ T
OTHER INFORMATION Hith &gl [ I | : | : | :
Capital expenditure BABESZ | 453,303 : 3,051,173 | 3443 231725 | - - ,
Depreciation and amortisation 372 & #54 | 9657451 618,402 , 290,939 1 239,045 = = I
Impairment loss BESE 238,396 : 107,783 ! = : =1 = : =1 :
Non-cash expenses other SRERTA< : | : | : | : I
than depreciation, (& - #HER I I I I I I I
amortisation and BEBERIN) : : : : : : : :
impairment loss | - 3,671,652, 497,113 = - 500,000 , |
L l L l L l L l
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Geographical segments

The Group participates in two principal environments, Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
excluding Hong Kong.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segment, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets and capital
expenditure are based on the geographical location of
the assets.

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

DEPE S ()

(0) 2 RS i 150 Bl

AEBEZEMEMBESET - §EA
PEARHNE ([PER]) (BFBKRIN °

ERESHRZIERE - 28 ADE
SPEMBED - HDBEEREARR
DEREEMEHNBED -

: : The PRC excluding :
| Hong Kong | Hong Kong | Consolidated
\ & I DE(EBR) \ =8
| w | w | w
I 2004 : 2003 1 2004 : 2003 1 2004 : 2003
| _RR0F | CRR=F | _R20F | _IF=F | _IR0F | "FF=
‘ | ‘ | I |
1 3 3 3 5 3 E
| JU | TG JU | JU JU | U
| | | | | |
Revenue from external customers  ZREISNREBEUTE | 59.020903 | 77059358 | 2,621,906, 142,448 | 61,842,809 | 77,301,806
Segment assets DEE E I 38,563,428 | 54,462,262 1 6,275,160 I 3,590,438 | 44,838,588 I 58,052,700
Capital expenditure incurred FREED : : : : : :
during the year BEARZ | 406,308 , 608,471, 240,978 , 2854786, 647,286, 3,463,257
|
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Notes to the Financial Statements A FSSRIRMYEE

For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)
11.  FIXED ASSETS BEEE
The Group NEH
| | | |
| | ,  Computer |
: : : and other :
| Leasehold | Furniture | equipment |
| improvements |,  and fixtures | Y5 : Total
. HENRRE | RARRE | AR | &8s
l 5 5 5 $
| — | — | o | —
‘ T T T 7T
Cost B A : : : :

1 April 2003 RCEE=FNR-8 } 1,019,200 | 724,405 | 4,802,689 | 6,546,294
Additions RE | 380126 ! 105,586 | 161574 ! 647,286
Disposals/Written off HE /D8 ‘ (1,019,200) | (257,638) (1,327,364) (2,604,202)

| | | |
| | | |
At 31 March 2004 RESSNE=R=1+-8 ' 380126 572,353 ! 3,636,899 ! 4,589,378
Accumulated depreciation RitifE : : : :
At 1 April 2003 ATBE-FMNF-8 | 619,050 | 488,577 ! 3,249,409 | 4,357,036
Charge for the year FRTE w 444871 17,449 747,084 1,309,404
Disposals/Written off e/ E 0,019,200 | (208,874 | 021513 | (2,44387)
| | | |
| | | |
At 31 March 2004 REFNF=HB=+—08 ! 44721 397,052 | 2,781,380 | 3,223,253
| | | |
T T T T
Net book value REE#E : : : :
At 31 March 2004 A_RRNF=R=1+-8 ! 335405 | 175201 ! 855,519 | 1,366,125
At 31 March 2003 RTBE-F-F-+-0 | 400,050 235828 | 1553280 2,189,258
| | | |
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For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)

4

0yl

12. GOODWILL

| The Group
I REE
|
T
|
: $
' 7T
|
Cost 5.3 :
At 1 April 2003 and at 31 March 2004 ROCEF=_FIUHE—BRIR_EFFNF=_F=+—~H : 9,507,923
Accumulated amortisation Rt BEH :
At 1 April 2003 ROEF=F0UF5—H : 1,267,723
Charge for the year GNE: 5is | 950,792
|
|
At 31 March 2004 R_EEMF=B=+—0B | 2,218,515
Net book value REE :
At 31 March 2004 ROCEFENF=—F=+—H : 7,289,408
At 31 March 2003 R_EBEE—_F—_H=+—08 : 8,240,200
|
13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES R B N O] < 2 &S
; The Company
! ANT
|
T T
: 2004 | 2003
| CEJME | _BE=
| |
T T
: $ $
! i 7T
| |
T T
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRGD (FRA) : 4,000,000 | 4,000,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries B A IRIE : 26,415,710 : 26,992,474
T T
: 30,415,710 | 30,992,474
Impairment loss BEBIE : (6,962,469) ' -
| 23,453,241 | 30,992,474
L l
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For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)
13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) IRy E AR T 2 Em ()
Details of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2004 are as follows: RTEENF=—A=—+—08 ' BATZFHBUT :

Nominal value |
of issued and :
paidup |
|
|
|
|

ERERBRBEERAT ZEREARBEAREREES

| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
: : : ordinary/
: : | registered
! I Percentage of | share capital |
" Place of incorporation/ : equity attributable | EBARME |
Name | registration and operation | to the Company | ZERARA, Principal activities
&  eRRUREEME 0 KATMERE | BfEe TREH
x x : x x
: | Direct | Indirect : :
i EHE W |
: : ‘ : :
ITE (BVI) Limited | The Brifsh Virgin Islonds | 100% '~ | US$20,000 | Investment holding
| SERUHE | i | 2000057 | BELE
| | | | |
ITE Smartcard Solutions : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $3,418,336 : Provision of smartcard systems and
Limited : B : : : 3,418,3367C : related services and sales of
BERHERAT | | | | ' smaricard relafed producs
| | | | | RESEFRRREBREAR
1 1 | 1 | HEBRFEBER
I I | I I
ITE Engineering Limited : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $2 : Provision of electrical and mechanical
| BB : : : 2%, insfalafion services
: : : : : RESEZETERS
I I | I I
ITE Investment Limited : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $2 : Investment holding
= 1 | 1 2T, BELR
| | | | |
RF Tech Limited : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $2 : Manufacture and research of
| BB : : : 2%\ smarlcard system related products
: : : : : HERMREEFRRERER
| | | | |
Rainbow Spirit Limited : Hong Kong : - : 100% : $2 : Dormant
RYEEERLT | BB 1 1 1 o7 | EREE
| | l l l
Quesco Information I Hong Kong - I 100% ! $2 | Commission of turnkey computer
Services Limited : B : : : 275 : systems development projects
| | | l l
l l l l l
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For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)
13. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) IRIEB AT < s (18)

' Nominal value
of issued and

| | |
l l l l
| | | |
| | I paidup
: : : ordinary/ :
: : | registered |
! I Percentage of ! share capital
. Place of incorporation/ : equity attributable EBARMR
Name | registration and operation | to the Company | BERRA Principal activities
2% : SEfR AN Il R & b A : - UN=i[7E : iAfmEE : TEERR
, , ‘ , ,
: " Direct | Indirect : :
: =F:: : BE :
+ + T + +
[TE (China) Limited : The People’s Republic : - : 100% : US$700,000 : Provision of smartcard systems and
TRESKERZRR . of China : | | 700,00057C | related services
BRATY : DE : | : : REBE AR REERS
I I | I I
Global Confidence Limited : The British Virgin Islands : - : 100% : Uss$10 : Investment holding
| HERUHES : : : 0x7T | KREZR
| | | | |
Capital Ledger Limited : The British Virgin Islands : - : 100% : US$54 : Investment holding
| HBRUBE 1 | } S4ET | REDR
I I | I I
Quesco Holdings Limited : Hong Kong : = : 100% : $5,000,000 : Investment holding
FRNEEPRERAT | BB l | | 50000007 | BEDE
I I | I I
| | | |
Quesco Systems Limited : Hong Kong : - 3 100% : $6,500,000 : Provision of information technology
BRIAFEBESEELAD BB | : I 6,500,0007T 1 consultancy services
l l | l | REEAREEEES
I I | I I
BROH (KB BREAD 3 The People’s Republic 3 - 3 100% 3 $600,000 3 Not yet commenced business
\ of China \ | \ 600,00070 | AEBEE
g I |
l l l l l
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free RUN B ATIRBRI AL - R WAREK
and repayable on demand. B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)
14. INVESTMENT SECURITIES REZS
: The Group
: AER
T T
; 2004 : 2003
I T RENE | THB=
| |
| 5 5
' 7w L 7T
| |
Unlisted investment, at cost FEEHRBEBS (ERA) | 2,830,189 | 2,830,189
Less: Impairment loss B BB B : (346,179) : (107,783)
| 2,484,010 | 2,722,406
| |
15. TRADING SECURITIES =5 =55
: The Group
: AER
T T
: 2004 : 2003
L CERNE 0 IR%=
|
: [
| $ : $
| % 5
| |
|
Equity securities listed in BB LMRAES : !
Hong Kong, at market value (¥%mhiE) : 98,750 : 63,010
l l
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For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)

16. INVENTORIES =8
: The Group
; A%EE
T T
: 2004 : 2003
=0 =S L
| |
: 5 S
I T 7
Raw materials RHR : 1,292,980 3,120,240
Work in progress RSB : 39,980 | -
Finished goods BN G : 1,309,470 ! 713,551
| 2,642,430 3,833,791
L L
No inventories included in the above are carried at net realisable R_EBEEMFE=—F=+—0  WwEBIasEEMUT
value as at 31 March 2004 (2003: Nil). HBIRBEINE(CESZS=5F: f) o
17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FE N & H A8 FE UN R FR
T T
| |
| The Group | The Company
| AEE | AN
| |
T T T T
| 2004 ;2003 , 2004 | 2003
| TEEME 0 CBB=F | _EBBWNE | _EE=
| | | |
: 5 $ 5 | $
' JT ! T ! JG | JC
| | | |
Trade receivables ENE ZERER : 6,615,254 : 13,013,600 : - : -
Other receivables H A BB AR R | 971,730 | 632,247 | 26,374 | 189,645
Gross amount due from FEW = B 2 BRFS ! ! ' !
| | | |
customers for service SNIERE | | | |
contract work - note 19 RE M9 | 7,058,899 |, 7,080,122 , - -
Refention money receivables  [EIN{RE : 954,625 | 2,967,105 : - =
| 15,600,508 | 23,693,074 26,374 | 189,645
L L L L
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For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) FEUW & E M EUERR (&)

The Group has a policy of allowing its trade customers with credit AREBCB KRBT HRIHESZZL,—RNFI0EE
period normally between 30 to 60 days or terms in accordance 608 ZEEH  WRRHESHZIRR - RER
with contracts. The ageing analysis, based on invoice date, is as HEtEHKREOMW D -
follows:
T T
: The Group : The Company
: AEE ' /N
| |
T T T T
2004 |, 2003 , 2004 | 2003
| TEZNE | T RBRE=F | T E2ENFE | 22
| | | |
T T T T
: 5 | $ | S | $
' 7c ! 7c ! 7 L 7T
| | | |
Within 1 month —@BAR | 4521734 | 6,866,642 | - -
1 month to 3 months —F—@8 : 814,692 : 2,098,081 : = : =
More than 3 months but BBE=1E5 ! [ [ [
_ | | | |
less than 12 months BOR+_E8 979,240 , 3,728,542 = =
More than 1 year but less Be—& : : : :
than 2 years I=R)Ni NIk : 299,588 | 320,335 | - =
T T T T
| 6,615,254 | 13,013,600 | - -
l l l L
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For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)
18. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES EBIYEMRKRIESTE S
T T
| |
| The Group | The Company
i s%E i AN
| |
T T T T
2004 | 2003 | 2004 , 2003
| SEEMF 0 CBE=F | _SE0F | _BFH=
| | | |
T T T T
: 5 | $ | 5 | $
! JT ! JT ! 7T ! 7T
| | | |
T T T T
Trade payables RIVE S ER | 1,306,657 | 2,504,992 | - —
Accrued charges and [EStERE R ! : ! :
| |
other payables HiWENRE | 7,792,317 |« 8,079,674 | 395,116 297,610
Gross amount due to FEN = P AR5 : : : :
customers for service SHNIERE : : : :
contract work — note 19 B8R —MEE19 I 486,071 1 368,164 | -1 -
Deferred maintenance income  EZERZ LA : 794,634 943,325 | - -
Retention money payable EURBE : 363,404 : 874,733 : - : -
| 10,743,083 | 12,770,888 , 395,116 297,610
| | | |

Included in creditors and accrued charges are trade payables ENEDRRESIBRAIEENSSEDR » HEHSD

with the following ageing analysis: T

T T
| |
| The Group | The Company
i A%H i ANT
| |
T T T T
| 2004 ;2003 , 2004 |, 2003
| TBR|IUF | —BB= | TERSIFE | —BE=
| | | |
| 5 $ | 5 | $
| ﬁ | ﬁ | ﬁ | ﬁ
| | | |

Within 1 month —BER | 250,068 | 977,255 - -

1 month to 3 months —Z=@A | 299.696 | 176,762 | - -

More than 3 months but BB =—{EBE ! [ ! [
| | | |

less than 12 months DIR+"BB | 1,986 | 1,230,563 = =
More than 1 year but BBe—FE | : : :
less than 2 years DY NS : 744,807 : 120,412 : - : -

| 1,306,657 | 2,504,992 , = -
L L L L
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SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

19. SERVICE CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS ETPZRFES K
: The Group
: AEH
T T
: 2004 : 2003
| CmsmEe | Css=
i i
| $ | $
: T 7T
Cost incurred plus attributable profit less B 2 4 A% A 10 FE 15 i : :
foreseeable losses BMETRRCER | 245555 26,248,803
Less: Progress billings B EE N REBE | (17,982,287) : (19,536,845)
T T
| 6,572,828 | 6,711,958
| 1
| |
Gross amount due from customers for BN ECRBENIIE [ |
service contract work — note 17 MIEfR%E — W EE17 : 7,058,899 : 7,080,122
Gross amount due to customers for NP CRFBS K TIZ : :
service confract work — note 18 RIEREE — Hy5E18 : (486,071) : (368,164)
t T
| 6,572,828 ! 6,711,958
| L
20. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS REEE
: The Group
: AEH
T T
; 2004 | 2003
: _EEMNFE : _EBE=
: s $
i T 7
Secured bank loans — note 26 BEBROTER-MWEE26 | 7,129,159 4,552,211
Bank overdrafts — note 26 RITBE2 —MaE26 : 1,794,665 : 1,852,810
| 8,923,824 6,405,021
| |
B A
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For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BECEFENF=/F=1+—B8LFE BTIE)
21. LONG TERM SECURED BANK LOAN EHBIEPIETER
: The Group
: AER
T T
: 2004 | 2003
| C—emmE 1 —e8=
|
: T
I $ : $
: T 7T
} T
Interest bearing borrowing SNEZBEE : ;
Secured bank loan - note 26 BRBRTER-MWEE26 2,083,810 ! 3,749,990
Less: Current portion B BIEREL 4D : 1,666,680 | 1,666,680
X I
) ]
Non-current portion FEENHA BB 1 : 416,630 : 2,083,310
|
| T
The secured bank loan is BEBRITERZ : |
repayable as follows: ERW P - | :
Within one year —ER | 1,666,680 | 1,666,680
In the second year B_F : 416,630 | 1,666,680
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E—FRFERF ' - 416,630
|
T t
| 2,083310 3,749,990
Il l
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22.

SR

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

SHARE CAPITAL SN
' Number of
: shares : Amount
| BR & | =8
| |
l l D
| \ 7T
| |
Authorised: EERA : : i
Ordinary shares of $0.01 each SREE.TTHEZ BR 1 2,000,000,000 | 20,000,000
| |
Issued and fully paid: EEOTEEBERA : | :
At 1 April 2003 and 31 March 2004 | |
TE|REOE=F=+—8 , 907,536,000 9,075,360
| |
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES RS REST S

The Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Scheme”) and a post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO
Scheme”) on 12 February 2001. In addition, the Company adopted
a 2002 share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) on 8 August
2002, and the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post-IPO Scheme were
simultaneously terminated. Upon termination of the Pre-IPO
Scheme and the Post-IPO Scheme, no further options may be
offered thereunder. However, in respect of the outstanding
options, the provisions of the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post-IPO
Scheme shall remain in force. The outstanding options granted
under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post-IPO Scheme shall continue
to be subject to the provisions of the Pre-IPO Scheme and the
Post-IPO Scheme, respectively, and the provisions of Chapter 23
of the GEM Listing Rules and the adoption of the 2002 Scheme
will not in any event affect the terms in respect of such outstanding
options.

ITE (Holdings) Limited % ANNUAL REPORT 2004
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ZZCR

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

EREESTE (B)

(a) Pre-IPO Scheme and Post-IPO Scheme (a) EmrRIGtEI R & SE
As mentioned above, the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Post- M ERE - EhRistEl R EMASEIR_S
IPO Scheme were terminated on 8 August 2002 and no ST F\BN\BRIE - WEASRILBERT
further options may be offered thereunder. Details of the BRE  RHERNSRITECERECFHFBEU
outstanding share options of these schemes during the B
year are as follows:

| | | | |
I Number of share options I I I I
! BRENE ! ! ! !
| | | | |
f I I [ [ 1 I I Priceper | Market
: : : : : : : : share to : value per
| ‘ ‘ ‘ | Outstonding | | bepad | shareat
I Outstanding | I I I at I I I onexercise | date of grant
: at 1 April 2003 : Granted : Exercised : Lapsed : 31 March 2004 : : Period during : of options : of options
Name or category | RIESZE during | duing | duing | RZFEOME | Date which options | TERRER | RHRERE
of participant ! B-8 | theyear | theyear | theyear | ZH=+-B | gronted ! exercisable I Amfiz | EBZ
RARENEZRAT . HRAR | FAEE | FRAE | FAXR | MRGE | BEEE | WENGER | SBME | BbE
t T T T T t t t t
Pre-IPO Scheme : : : : : : : : :
LrsiE | | | | | | | [ [
I | | | | I I I I
Lau Hon Kong, Vincent Director, 6109440 | - - S YT | 12 februay | NAugusi 200110 | S0095 | N/A
Yex/E3 [ | | | | [ 2001 | 11 February 2011 | 0,095 | &R
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ 725 | “85-%/\B_+-8 ! !
} | | | | \ZB+28 | E8-—%2R1-8 | }

George Roger Manho/Director | 4,000,000 | - - - 4,000,000 1 12 February 1 21 Augusf 200110 | $0.095 1 N/A
Belk/ /g2 : : : : : : 2001 : 11 February 2011 : 0.0957% : TEm
‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ | J22-% | T22-E\BI+-8

[ [ [ [ [ IZB+28 1 B22——%"F+-8 | [
Cheng Kwok Hung/Director : 4,000,000 : - : - : - : 4,000,000 : 12 February : 21 August 2001 fo : $0.095 : N/A
gEk/E3 | | | | | | 2001 | 11 February 2011 00957 | TER
| | | | | | | %% E/ ﬁ «\» g1 |
| L :-w:-ww: |
Liv Hoi Wah/Director | 19.112,640 - - - 19,112,640 | 12 February | 21 August 200110 | $0.095 | N/A
Y5E/83 ! ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ 2001 ! 11 February 2011 ! 00951 ! RER
1 } } } } | 237 | “32-F)\A°+-B | 1
[ I I I I I _B+ZB 1 2%—%_FB1+-8 | I
lee Peng Fei, Allen/Director ! 1760000 ! - ! - | - 1760000 ' 12 February ! 21 August 200110 ! 0095 ! N/A
ZRR/E3 : : : : : : 2001 : 11 February 2011 : 0.09570 : ABA
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
Employees : 35,157,920 : - : - : - : 35,157,920 : 12 February : 21 August 2001 fo : $0.095 : N/A
ES \ ! ! ! ! ! 2001 | 1 February 2011 1 0095% | TER
| S ses | emsein) |
[ [ [ [ [ | ZB+Z8 | —£"B+-8 | [
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
‘ 70,140,000 = - - 7040000 | ‘ ‘ ‘
ARG MR o
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

EARREESTE (8)

(@) Pre-IPO Scheme and Post-IPO Scheme (a) EmrRIGtEI R & SE
(continued) € -]
[ [ [ [ [
I Number of share options I I I I
| mins - -
J [ [ I I f ‘ I Priceper | Market
: I I I I : : : share to : value per
| : : : : Outstanding | | | be paid | shareat
I Oufstanding | | | | at I I I onexercise | date of grant
: ot 1April2003 | Gronted | Exercised |  Llopsed | 31 March 2004 : : Period during : of options : of options
Name or category | RIZE=E : during : during : during : RZB3ME | Date | which options | TEERER | BHERE
of participant ! B-B | theyear | theyear | theyear ;| =HA=+-B ! gronted ! exercisable I Exfltz ! EBZ
RERZHERER | OBRAE 1 GREM | FAGE | EAXH | MRAE | RWEE | WREGES | SRER | BOGE
} ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ } } } }
) I I I I ) ) ) )
Post-IPO Scheme : | | | | : : : :
Litgst8l | ! ‘ ‘ : [ [ [ [
[ : : : : [ [ [ [

Employees : 5,904,000 1 -1 -1 872,000 1 5,032,000 : 10 April : 10 April 2002 to : $0.455 : $0.455
ES | ! ! ! ! I 2001 1 9 April 2004 1 0455 1 0455
| I I I I | _Qﬁiﬁ\ _EBE+H |

[ [ [ [ -7 — =R
l ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ | mAtE, 3CEINEMANG
Employees I 8,436,000 1 - - 11,680,000 1 6,756,000 | 11 October | 11 October 20020 | 50.35 | $0.3
ES ! : : : : ! 10 Oclober 2004 | 0357 | 037
[ [ S [ [
: | | | | : “ERTETRT-8
| | | | [ [ EZ2EMEFRATE
Employees I 2,000,000 ! - - - 2,000,000 ! Tluly 200410 1 50195 1 $0.195
= : : : : : | Becember 20l | OI9ST | 0I95T
[ [ [ [ [ | _S3MECA-BE |
‘ ! ! ! ! ‘ TNB 1 Z8——F+2R=+-8 |
[ [ [ [ | [ [ [
[ [ [ [ [ [ [ [
I 16,340,000 | - - 1 2,552,000 13,788,000 1 I I
| | | | | | | |
A R SRAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

2002 Scheme

The Company operates the 2002 Scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods
or services to the Group, customers of the Group, advisers
and consultants, etc. The 2002 Scheme became effective
on 8 August 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the 2002 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share option granted to a director, chief executive or a
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of $5 million, within any 12-
month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer upon payment of
a nominal consideration of $1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the 2002 Scheme, if earlier.

[upraae i
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SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

EREESTE (8)

(b)

—EE_AEE
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W BFRBREUE BRI - BIFEIRE B st
TERBH °

MATERTBERITEZER L BRERE
T AR B _FsrE| REMBRE
STEICBRE - ERORHBENEBE
NIRADBFITREC30% - IRET+ES
B AR _SF_FrERETHEME
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B EESLRRALRIERESHITIRDZ
1% (ETRBEI ERCBRERD - AR
BERASEREHAE -

BES  THRE - ADARRIE T
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

ERESTE (8)

(b) 2002 Scheme (continued) (b) BB &F5t8 (1)
The exercise price of the share option is determinable by BRECTEERDBERERE @ EERS
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the ERTIRSE : (IRTROEBERERY
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of the EBRINME : IRTRDARDET B
offer of the share options; lii) the average closing price of BIABRZ 8 ZFIDIRMEE : (iRt
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately 1B -
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the share.
Details of the outstanding share options of the 2002 RERGRTEL _SE_F5talcBRE
Scheme during the year are as follows: LEEBW
: Number of share options : : : :
[ RERRE [ [ [ [
: I I I I J‘ : : Price per : Market
| ! ! ! ! | | | shareto | value per
I : : : : Outstanding | I I be paid | shareat
: Oufstanding | | | | ot : : : on exercise : date of grant
| at1April2003 |  Gronted ! Exercised !  Llopsed | 31 March 2004 | | Period during | ofoptions | of options
Name or category R - : % : during : during : during : K-Z3mE | Date ! which options | TEMRER | BHERE
of participant : meE-8 | theyear | theyear | theyear | =HA=+-8H : granted : exercisable : Atz : g8
ABRERBRER [ e K AT E I OERBY | FRGE | FRXE | HRGE o EHEH REGES | BRER | RimE
\ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ \ \ \ \
[ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ [ [ [ [
Employees I 3,500,000 ! - | - | - | 3,500,000 1 9 August | 9 August 2003 1o | 50175 1 $0.175
ES | : : : : | 2002 Bhgsioon | omsE 0T
| | | | | | ENBNBE | |
[ ! ! ! ! [ ZENRNB |
| I I I I I I I
An Employee : 6,400,000 : - : - : - : 6,400,000 : 9August: 9 February 2003 fo : $0.175 : $0.175
ES ! ! ! ! ! ! 2002 | 8 August 2012 | 0sT | 05T
I I I I I I —z2-—x! —2z—m-— I I
[ | \ \ \ | —Re—F, _RE=E_ANEE [
[ [ [ [ [ 1 ABAB  ZB-ZENBAB | [
| | | | | | | | |
I | | | | | | |
| 9,900,000 | - - - 9,900,000 | | |
| ] ] ] ] | | |

At 31 March 2004, the number of shares issuable under the Pre-
IPO Scheme, the Post-IPO scheme and the 2002 Scheme were
70,140,000, 13,788,000 and 9,900,000, respectively.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or

to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

24. RESERVES SR
(a) The Company (a) VNN

[ [ [
: Share : Retained profits/ :
! premium | (Accumulated |
: note (b) : losses) :
- RtYEN RERN/ Total
| Wi 3 (b) | (RRER) | =H
| | |
| 5 5 $
I G| g | TG
| | |
| | |

Balance at 1 April 2002 R-EE"FF—HHH ; 22,856,811 | 406,833 | 23,263,644
| | |

Repurchase of shares QER®HD : (40,562) : - : (40,562)

Loss for the year FERBE } - 0,351,161 ! (1,351,161

Balance af 31 March 2008 R-EE=F=B=+-B&% |, 22816249 , 1944,328) | 21,871,921
| | |
| | |

Loss for the year ENBER ! - (7,858,910 ! (7,858,910)
| | |
T T T

Balance at 31 March 2004 R_EBME=F=+—-Bf5% | 22816249 (8,803,238) | 14,013,011

(b) The application of the share premium account is governed (b) @{/ﬁfﬁ*ﬂgﬁ%z@ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@az%ﬂ%@%&%ﬂ}
by the Company’s arficles of association and the Cayman s PIRESERENTERIES « IEHEY
Islands Companies Law, which provides that the share %E}EHR%ZHH =8 0] FA{EE) IS 88 D IR TS5V D
premium account may be applied in making distributions BRE . HEEERESNORALE 2 H
or paying dividends tfo members, provided that Plig » AN TINBERE D 228 BR0sS
immediately following the date on which distribution or N =Y
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

(c) The Group’s merger reserve represents the difference (c) ANEBCSHEBREER _ESE=2F+—F+
between the aggregate of the nominal value of the share NBAEESEEE  BEBEACRHEEBE
capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group FRERRMmEsTRHEE -
reorganisation completed on 18 November 2000 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefor.

(d) At 31 March 2004, in the opinion of the directors, the (d) fiffﬂﬁiﬁ:Jr—E]  BERAAN
Company’s reserves available for distribution to TSR BANDRE 2 B (BIFRH
shareholders of the Company, comprising share premium ;g BREEBEIBEIRBEEBEBSEA
account, net of accumulated losses, amounted to 14,013,0115¢ (— =5 =4:21.871,9215%) °
$14,013,011 (2003: $21,871,921).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25.

26.

27.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group parficipates in a Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF”)
scheme operated by an approved MPF trustee for its staff in Hong
Kong. All eligible staff and the Group make mandatory
contributions in compliance with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes, organized by relevant
local government authorities for the staff in the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the retirement
schemes at certain rates of the basic salary of their employees in
the PRC.

The Group's retirement costs charged to the income statement
for the year were $1,920,043 (2003: $1,944,854).

BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 March 2004 the Group had general banking facilities granted
by banks to the extent of approximately $18.5 million (2003: $32
million). The facilities were secured by the following:

(a) corporate guarantees executed by the Company;

(b) personal guarantees executed by three directors of the
Company;

(c) personal guarantee executed by a director of one of the

Company’s subsidiary;
(d) the Group’s fixed deposits of $13,584,923 (2003:
$13,511,368).

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2004, the Group’s total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
properties are payable as follows:

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

RINTR ATl
FEBRRRSEREMS R BARNEAES
(3278 )) 518 - %5t BB — M ECRES

SRAER - IEEERETHAERE AR A
MENRE =z 51 BIR B2 AR E sl R -

AATPENONBELAIEENHTERBERERE
MWEE S RISERNEREIE - IWEATIZIRPE
BRERAEIBIRENNEUBREERT EFLBE
BYHERR -

AREERAFES NIRRT ZIRIRNAR1,920,043

TTC(CZER=1F : 1,944,8547T) °

RITRRE

RIBSNF=B=+—08 ' A&EBERTREZ
— B R 1T R B £ #£V18,500,0007C (—_EE =1
32,000,0007C) ° A& ZEIPA T :

(@ ARIZEXRER
b) ARY=[BFZBAER ;

(c) ARTGEP—EHERAIES 2 BNER
&

(d) KNEBE R #13,584,9237 (—
13,511,36870) X EHER °

H;::Fﬁ;:*& 5
=2 EE :

HExE

REBBNE=A=1—8  AEBREEMNE
2RI HOEEREHARB &2 SEBSS
B0 :

1 2004 1 2003
| CBRNE 1 —$B=
| |
| |
| $ | $
| |
| JT | 7C
| |
| |
Within one year — TR ‘ 1,083,103 ! 1,515,556
After one year but within five years —FREAER : 1,513,278 106,064
| |
| |
\ 2,596,381 | 1,621,620
| |
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2004 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28.

29.

30.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2004, the Company has undertaken to guarantee
certain banking facilities granted to two wholly-owned subsidiaries
to the extent of $18.5 million (2003: $32 million).

At 31 March 2004, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2003: Nil).

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors consider the ultimate holding company at 31 March
2004 to be Rax-Comm (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in
The British Virgin Islands.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors
on 11 June 2004.

ISR P A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR EE

BE_SBNF=R=+—BILLFE CETIE)

WREE

RIBSSNF=B=+—8 ' A IR ETMmHE
2BENBATZE THRTREMIZH18,500,0007T
(ZEBE=1 : 32,000,0007%) 2 EHF

R_SENF=R=+—8  ~EBWHET
LUREEBE(CEE=F:8§) -

FERXR

BIRIZEPAT

EEHRRR_BSUF=R=T—"BZERERA
R RE & X B E MW I < Rax-Comm (BVI)

Limited ©

75 R AR AE
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Five Year Summary AFEEE

| | | | |
' 2004 ! 2003 ! 2002 ! 2000 ! 2000
| CEEEENEE 0 TSRS 0 EECA 1 _BEE-E 1 555
| | | | |
T T T T T
: 5 S | S | S| $
: JC : JC : TG : I : TG
T T T T T
Results £ : : : : :
Tumover =3 | 61842809 | 77301806 | 62,848,428 | 450669195 | 16,535,431
(Loss)/Profit from operations 0% (518) /%R | M817,375 | (20,798,775, 5,280,406 , 19,070,287 , 1,430,378
Finance costs MEMA : (721,055) | (582,385) | (142,724 | (7,862) | (4,466)
(Loss)/Profit from ordinary RRAIHBEHEL : : : : :
acivities before taxation (B18) /m A | (12,038,430 | (21,381160), 517,682 | 19,062,425 | 1425912
Taxation RE : - 167399 | (3038021 2,800,000/ -
(Loss|/Profit atfributable REES (B1R) : : : : :
to shareholders Ve 1l | (12,038,430 ' (21,213761) ) 4,833,880 | 16,262,425 | 1,425,912
Earnings per share 5B (B8) /&R : : : : :
Basic EX 1 (133 cents {ll) | (234 cents )} 0.53 cents fll | 2.01 cents {ll | 0.36 cents {ll
Diluted BE I N/AAREA 1 (228 cents )1 0.50 cents {lll 1 1.99 cents I ! -
: : : : :
Assets and liabilities BERER : : : : :
Fixed assefs BEEE | 1866125 | 2189.258 | 3,292,969 ! 1,616,853 | 924,839
Goodwill BES I 7,289,408 1 8,240,200 1 9,190,992 | - -
Invesiment securities REES 0484010 | 2,722,406 | - - -
Net current assets nABEFE | 12365458 | 24058247 | 43901763 | 51725572 | 864,032
Total assets less current liabiliies BEERNRDEE : 23,505,001 : 37,210, : 56,385,724 : 53,342,425 : 1,788,871
Non-current liabilities FRBEE | 416630 | 2,083,310 - (3,293 | (42,809)
| | | | |
| 23088371 1 35126801 1 56385724 1 53339132 1 1,746,062
l l l l l
Share capital BA | 9075360 | 9,075360 | 9079960 | 4,490,680 | 3,000,000
Reserves =1 I 14013011 ' 26,051,441 1 47,305,764 | 48,848,452 | (1,253,938)
l l l l l
| 23,088,371 | 35126801 | 56385724 | 53,339,132 | 1,746,062
AFHE
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